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KEY DATA OF THE TECHNOTRANS GROUP (IFRS])

A previous 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
year
Revenue (€ "000) 351% = 205,095 151,792 122,838 112,371 105,207
Technology (€ "000) 424% 147570 103,623 81457 73758 65,988
Services (€ "000) 194 % 57525 48169 41,381 38613 39,219
EBITDA (€ "000) 613% 22,654 14,045 12187 9,873 7,815
EBITDA margin (%) 1.0 93 99 88 74
EBIT (€ "000) 792% 17,438 9731 8,952 6,830 4,626
EBIT margin (%) 85 64 73 61 44
Net profit for the period'(€ “000) 69.5% 12,191 7192 6,262 4,381 3,016
as percent of revenue 58 47 51 39 29
Net profit per share (€) 616% 176 1.09 0.96 0.67 0.47
Dividend per share (€) 60.0% 0.88* 0.55 0.48 0.33 0.20
Balance sheet (€ "000) 32% 125,307 121,445 76,043 74,534 73,019
Equity (€ "000) 127% 69,750 61,880 51,725 47,470 43,743
Equity ratio (%) 557 510 68.0 637 599
Return on equity (%)? 175 116 123 94 70
Net debt3(€ "000) 764% 9,291 5,267 -11,575 -4,763 -941
Free cash flow* (€ "000) -1012% 150 -12,649 8,542 4,821 -3,433
Employees (average) 306% 1,293 990 810 77 763
Employee (FTE) (average) 322% 1132 856 697 670 658
Personnel expenses (€ “000) 333% 70,588 52,941 42,160 39,808 37,022
as percent of revenue 344 349 343 354 352
Revenue per employee (FTE) (€ "000) 22% 181 177 176 168 160
Number of shares at end of period 6907665 6907665 6530588 6516434 6493474
share price max (€) 5075 2477 19.90 956 10.35
share price min (€) 2217 1575 9.21 741 6.90
"Net profit for the period = profit attributable to technotrans AG shareholders
2Return on equity = Net profit of the period/Equity to technotrans AG shareholders

2Net debt
“Free cash flow

financial liabilities — cash and cash equivalents
Net cash from operating activities
+ cash used for investments acc. to cash flow statement

*Proposal to the Shareholder Meeting
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

We can look back on the most successful financial year in the history of technotrans. 2017 delivered further emphatic
proof that our company's chosen course is the right one. We have demonstrated both renewed and fresh strength
over the past few years. We hope you will continue to accompany us throughout this success story - an aspiration
thatis also clearly voiced in the motto we have chosen for this year's Annual Report: “Going strong.”

We can be proud of what we have achieved so far. But that is no reason to rest on our laurels - it is an incentive
actively to make further moves. For example, we aim to deepen the synergies with our subsidiaries and make the leap
from declarations of intent to meaningful revenues in our new markets. Medium-term, we are targeting annual revenue
of EUR 300 million. All accompanied by increased internationalisation that is fittingly expressed in the change in our
company's legal form to a Societas Europaea.

But allow us first to take a look back: the past financial year saw technotrans profit from its highly successful
positioning in the key markets it addresses, but also from the generally very positive development in the global
economy. In 2017 the German economy experienced a broad-based upturn that was driven not just by worldwide
demand, but also by domestic consumption. Capacities at our customers were well utilised across the board and
employment in Germany hit a record level. Meanwhile consumer prices remained broadly stable. Allin all, the German
economy achieved its strongest growth since 20711 price-adjusted gross domestic product was up 2.5 percent.

The business development of the technotrans Group was no less pleasing. We again accomplished growth in all
relevant markets in 2017. This growth was manifested most clearly in revenue, where we achieved a significant rise
from EUR 152 million in 2016 to EUR 205 million last year. Around 12 percent of this increase stemmed from organic
growth and 20 percent was non-organic in origin.

Business with the manufacturers of offset, digital and flexographic printing presses actually developed slightly better
in the 2017 financial year than in the previous year, when there had been the drupa boost from the world’s biggest
industry exhibition. The printing press market has thus been enjoying mild growth since 2014.

technotrans was again able to edge out the competition in profiling itself as the development partner of choice in
virtually every field of business related to the print area, further extending its market position in certain sub-areas.

In addition to classic business with dampening solution circulators and filtration systems, our system solutions in

the areas of LED UV cooling, ink and varnish supply and the segment of cooling systems for digital and flexographic
printing performed especially well. The result: with revenue growth of more than 2 percent, our performance was again
better than that of the printing press market as a whole.

In the area of laser, machine tool and forming technology, we achieved conspicuously strong growth in 2017. Business
with laser system manufacturers merits particular note because it exceeded our expectations. Our organic revenue
growth in that area came to mare than 33 percent, in a turnaround from the 2016 financial year that had failed to
reach our benchmark.

As a system partner to the laser industry, our areas of application span classic laser applications in metal working,
medical equipment, semiconductor technology and the machining of new materials, such as 3D printing. The German
mechanical and plant engineering sector was likewise in rude health in 2017. Demand for both filtration systems and
classic machine cooling grew markedly thanks to strong portfolio business and new customers. Our business with the
manufacturers of die-cutting and pressing equipment, which we supply mainly with spray lubrication systems and
cooling units, likewise continued to develop. Having previously commissioned the first large-scale spray lubrication
system in 2016, in 2017 we presented our first five-metre system for the automotive industry to our customers at the
Blech Expo.
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In the plastics engineering area, we have now completed our first full year of business following the takeover of gwk
in Meinerzhagen in 2016. gwk develops and manufactures temperature control and cooling plants specifically for
this market. With gwk having had to contend with a challenging environment in recent years, our combined efforts
increased its revenue by 12 percent in 2017. The key factors behind this dynamic revenue growth were generally high
demand along with business expansion aided by the international technotrans group of companies.

Of our growth markets, the battery cooling sector achieved the most promising progress. Following a deluge of new
projects in the storage media cooling area, we positioned ourselves in the past financial year as one of the leading
manufacturers of cooling solutions for quick-charging stations. Within a very short period we succeeded in winning
over the leading manufacturers of charging stations on the basis of our technology and performance. Against the
backdrop of the political debate concerning air pollution, and in response to growing market pressure, the development
of the infrastructure is now a defining issue worldwide. The rapid acceleration in orders from our customers in the
fourth quarter gives us cause to be hugely optimistic about this area's future development. With revenue growth of
around 30 percent, we remain on track for success in this market segment.

As well as out-and-out production, we offer our customers and in turn their customers worldwide precisely the service
they need. Compared to our often smaller competitors, we are excellently placed to retain our customers over the long
term. That safeguards both our competitive position and our profitability.

The Services area also includes our Technical Documentation activities. Here, we compile user manuals, operating
instructions and handbooks on behalf of customers. We also offer our customers translation services and the
corresponding software management systems for document administration. With revenue growth in excess of 10
percent, we more than consolidated our dominant position worldwide in the past financial year.

Ladies and Gentlemen, 2017 - as | have already outlined — was the best year in the history of technotrans. And we
would like you to participate in this success. You do so on the one hand through the outstanding performance of
technotrans shares, which gained 93 percent in the past year alone. On the other hand - almost 20 years to the day
after the initial listing on the New Market - we will propose the distribution of a dividend of EUR 0.88.

On behalf of the Board of Management, | would like to take this opportunity to thank you, our shareholders, as well as
our employees! We are proud of all that we have achieved, and hungry for more. Today, we have a presence in many

promising markets and are well-equipped to extend our position.

We have the team, the expertise and the spirit that we will need to continue growing. We look forward to that venture
and hope that you will continue to accompany us along that path.

On that note | and my colleagues on the board wish you an enjoyable read with this Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board of Management

Henry Brickenkamp
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

> Henry Brickenkamp, Dr. Andreas Joseph Schmid, Hendirk Niestert, Dirk Engel

Henry Brickenkamp
BOARD SPOKESMAN

Joined technotrans in 2005, starting as Director of Sales and since 2006 Member of the Board of technotrans AG.
Henry Brickenkamp is responsible for Products and Markets.

Dirk Engel
MEMBER OF THE BOARD (CFOQ)

In charge of Finance and Accounts for the technotrans Group since 2004, Member of the Board since 2006.
Dirk Engel ist zustandig fir das Ressort Finance and Administration.
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> Dr. Andreas Joseph Schmid, Hendirk Niestert, Henry Brickenkamp, Dirk Engel

Hendirk Niestert
MEMBER OF THE BOARD

Joined technotrans in 2007, at last service director worldwide and Member of the Board since February 2018.
Hendirk Niestert is responsible for the Sales, Service and Quality Management areas.

Dr. Andreas Joseph Schmid

MEMBER OF THE BOARD
Member of the Board since February 2018.

Dr. Andreas J. Schmid is responsible for the Development, Controls, Business Units, Production, Purchasing and
Logistics areas.
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SASSENBERG, GERMANY

Research and Development is where | and
my colleagues make both our own ideas and

, , our customers’ wishes become a reality. We
therefore always try to stay one step ahead
of the market.

Dr. Robert Holtwick, Project Manager (Research & Development)

Shaping the future

Working in Research and Development serves up something new to fascinate me every day. This is where we help shape
the future with our products. | can also take pride in the knowledge that electric mobility, medical technology or digital
printing wouldn't be possible in quite the same way without technotrans products. | relish the dialogue with colleagues at
the other locations, we learn from each other and that makes us even more effective.

Meanwhile the developments of recent years in various industries present a challenge. We can't countenance standing
still. That motivates me. So it's good to know we have the company's backing and enjoy the freedom to experiment.
Ultimately, our developments make an important contribution to the whole group, which preserves the company’s viability..

COLCHESTER, GREAT BRITAIN

Every market is different - | notice that every
time | talk to colleagues from around the

, , world. But we always apply the same rule:
when customers come knocking, we respond
swiftly and straightforwardly. The customer is
the focus of everything we do.

Scott Smith, Technical Support

Always helpful

Helping the people who bring their requirements to me is my top priority. Being available at any time and finding an optimal
solution for all parties is where technotrans does more than merely pay lip service. What actually matters is that the
customer’s production operations run smoothly and deliver quality. I know that here in Customer Support we decisively
influence how our company is seen from the outside.

So ideally | start by trying to solve problems over the phone or by remote maintenance. If that doesn't work, the service

personnel will visit to carry out what | have discussed in advance with the customer. Since the subsidiary in England was
founded in 1990, we've been a well oiled team and internal communication has always been our watchword.
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SAINT MAXIMIN, FRANCE

Germany is not far away, yet France can
sometimes seem a world apart. Our French

, , customers mostly turn to us first, and we
have quite a free hand in finding solutions
to every challenge. That saves time and
therefore money.

Sofian Benabedrabou, Development Manager

New products in established markets

The priority for service is to find a quick, simple answer to every customer requirement. Customers always want 100 %
availability, without having to negotiate any unnecessary hurdles. technotrans has grasped that, and gives us the freedom
to act as we see fit. There are no language barriers, no unnecessary coordination processes and no long distances.
Instead, we are present locally and can operate virtually autonomously even for new products.

Along with that trust, we bear plenty of responsibility, which we of course want to justify. | think that's worked very well
in recent years, we've been able to handle plenty of new projects and since then have been looking after very satisfied
customers. I've also observed how French businesses are investing increasing amounts in their facilities, which still offer
plenty of potential for sustainable, more efficient production.

CHICAGO, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

The name technotrans enjoys a long-
established reputation in the USA. After all,

, , we now offer our entire portfolio and have
had our own location since 1995. | find the
future markets such as e-mobility especially
exciting.

Dandy Uy, Refrigeration Engineer

Unlimited opportunities in America

Amid all the heated political debate in the USA, itis often overlooked that industry here is further ahead in many future
markets than Europeans sometimes assume. E-mobility is @ major area for which | know technotrans supplies great
products and has excellent references. It's also a big help that we've already made a name for ourselves in such fields as
laser technology or plastics processing.

And having our own location in North America takes the wind right out of the sails of anyone who has reservations about
technotrans being from Germany. That also shows me the people in Sassenberg have a deep understanding of the special
circumstances on other continents. It makes my work easier and | can say “Made in Germany” with a clear conscience if |
am selling reliable, innovative products.
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TAICANG, CHINA

| make various products for technotrans in
Taicang, mainly for the Chinese market. We

, , bring together the best attributes of German
and Chinese corporate culture.

Luca Wen, Warehouse & Logistic Supervisor

Growth and culture united

We see every day just how important China is. For instance, we've packaged sales and service activities so that customers
have local contacts for all their products. | know from experience that that's important to the Chinese to see foreign
businesses demonstrate a strong commitment to China. It's also important for me to find that in my employer. That's why

| like working for technotrans. We're expanding further and even following customers into new markets. We introduced the
SAP system in 2017, so we're now connected even better and more efficiently with the parent company for all business
processes. Such investments inspire deep trust.

I'm convinced technotrans is very well positioned in China. The government and businesses are promoting a wide range of
developments in electric mobility or medical services. We have important products for those areas.

SINGAPORE, SINGAPORE

The biggest challenge in the Asian market
is cultural differences. Businesses here rate

, , technotrans products very highly. But they
expect us to have a thorough knowledge of
the market and provide a top service with a
dedicated local branch.

Jenny Chang, Sales & Service Manager

Convincing with quality

Whoever buys a product of a German company in Asia can rightly expect top quality, because the domestic competitors
are often cheaper. Our notable success in Singapore is mainly down to the fact that technotrans products satisfy that
criterion. We explain to our customers that the total outlay for the investment, when spread over the operating life of a
machine, is actually lower in our case. Once we've lived up to that promise, customers remain loyal to us. That's how we are
progressively tapping the huge potential for technotrans in Singapore, Chennai and Melbourne.

The decisive thing for me in all this is that technotrans’ structure means it can play to its strengths. The customer-specific
solutions give us flexibility in sales and the globally reliable service is perfectly adapted to rapidly expanding customers.
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LEGNANGO, ITALY

My work has changed dramatically in recent
years. An important part of it remains having

, , a local presence, because customers value
personal contact. But when time is of the
essence, we can now often solve problems
by remote maintenance.

Riccardo Consonni, Service Engineer

Trust in every location

At a meeting with my colleague from France, we discovered digitalisation has long become a reality for us. We read a lot
about it in the media, but our day-to-day work already definitely revolves around concepts such as remote maintenance,
and soon predictive maintenance too. The standards expected of service in Europe are generally very high. So it's good
that technotrans has such a broad basis in the EU. Whether in France, the UK, Spain or here in Italy, we all have our own
service team. | believe that's the only path to success for an international business. Time and time again, | hear the same
from my customers.

Because we've been operating successfully here for quite some years, we can now act highly independently and assume
local responsibility for the products for the new areas, such as our spray lubrication system.

KOBE, JAPAN

technotrans has long been active in Japan
because we partner the big printing press
, , manufacturers with our core skills. The
culture here is very important and as a
globally active group we naturally adapt to it.

Yoko Okada, Sales & Service Administrator

Accompany customers - everywhere

A Japanese customer was once surprised when | mentioned our German head office towards the end of our very first
meeting. He had initially perceived us as a Japanese company, and already knew of the technotrans brand from his
competitor's systems. That was the biggest compliment imaginable for me, because we Japanese really do appreciate it
when a company truly engages with our culture. technotrans is correspondingly well established above all in the print area.
That provides a good position from which we have been very successfully tapping other markets in Japan for the past few
years.

Don't forget: many leading mechanical engineering companies are from Japan, and this country has always led the way
with new technologies. In fact the economy has recently been growing faster than expected.
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INDAIATUBA, BRAZIL

Putting across the advantages of
technotrans in South America is quite a

, , challenge. Because the economic situation
keeps changing rapidly - and not justin
Brazil. That makes it all the more pleasing that
we've recently been able to acquire a string
of new customers.

Maria Soares, Sales Assistant

Exploiting opportunities worldwide

As a salesperson, obviously | look first at the figures. There is so much potential in South America, but unfortunately the
situation in many countries is not straightforward. It's very important for technotrans to be represented in person here.
On the one hand most of my customers expect that, and on the other hand it means we can respond quickly to local
developments and seize opportunities as soon as they arise. Just being mare flexible than a competitor has helped us
close many a deal.

And once a customer is convinced about the quality of our products, they keep coming back to me. In the medium to long
term, the market in South America will gain even further importance for technotrans because more and more customers
are already expanding their production or entering the market.

MADRID, SPAIN

Our entry into new markets means my work

, , is now even more varied. At technotrans, I've
been able to steadily broaden my knowledge
and now handle a lot of challenging tasks
independently.

José Naranjo, Service Engineer

Trust pays off

Because all locations operate highly independently, it's important for us to have sufficient expertise locally in every
product area. That means every single employee needs to develop professionally, and I'm glad we have plenty of
opportunities to do so. I've learned a great deal in my 6 years at technotrans. I'm now reaping the rewards. Alongside our
products, offering a good service in Spain helps us set ourselves apart from the competition. If | present an air of calmness
and expertise, the customer will then associate those qualities with technotrans. So | think it's important to adopt a
professional manner.

Ultimately it's also a way for me to give something back, because | really appreciate the secure, good job with all its

opportunities within the company. We're also noticing Spain’s economy gather pace again. That's benefiting our local
branch and the whole group..
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DUBAI, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

Things run at a different pace in Dubai
compared to Europe. On the one hand we
have ultramodern systems and businesses,
but we sometimes also lack expertise, for
which we then call on the best companies
worldwide.

Niels Siegel, Managing Director

The growth of tomorrow

Il see the technotrans location as the gateway to the Middle East, and we can also serve a good portion of Africa from
here. Those are both incredibly dynamic markets with very distinctive challenges. While global groups realise huge projects
in Dubai that the whole world watches, other countries are still far from being considered industrialised. Yet merely the
population statistics show technotrans is right to have a presence here. It's still difficult, but my task is to tap the huge
potential as soon as fitting opportunities arise.

Reference projects such as the electric tram in Qatar and the installation of scanner technology in Abu Dhabi and Saudi
Arabia obviously help. They help us demonstrate how technotrans has innovative products that operate reliably in the
region’s occasionally difficult climatic conditions.

MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA

Whenever | tell people | work in Australia,
colleagues worldwide ask me first if it really

, , is so nice Down Under, and then if the market
is really that relevant. And my answer to both
questions is: yes, definitely!!

Paul Duncan, Service Manager

Cooling Down Under

My patch covers an entire continent. | look after technotrans customers in all major Australian cities, of which there are
many more than is widely assumed. Melbourne, Sydney, Brisbane, Perth, Adelaide — many people in Europe don't realise
each of these cities has over a million inhabitants. Melbourne and Sydney alone have a combined population of more than
nine million. That neatly deals with the question of how relevant the Australian market is. Here we have very interesting
customers who supply their products all over the world, and our systems are frequently fitted. The number of installations
in Australia is continually rising, too.

So having a local presence is indispensable. Without that, we'd be too much out on a limb. Customers and OEM

manufacturers alike are accustomed to a high standard of service from technotrans, and we can only deliver that long-
term by being here on the ground.
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SASSENBERG, GERMANY

My office at gds is right opposite the HQ in
Sassenberg. That's where | and my team of

, , experts work on Technical Documentation
and CE support for our clients.

Ludger Bruns, Head of Service Consulting

Rendering information useful

Information needs to disseminate knowledge - that is and always will be at the core of our work. As products become ever
more complex, the context of use is coming more sharplyinto focus than before. At gds, we now work with what is known
as electronic content delivery to achieve optimised technical documentation that overcomes the limitations of paper.
Constantly tuning in to new products, companies and requirements is the exciting part of my work.

Finding ever better ways of supplying every user with up-to-date information accurately and swiftly is a challenge. | help
customers to integrate our solutions profitably into their day-to-day work through workshops and training courses. |
always find it valuable to have direct contact with the people involved. | am able to be of help, and see the results of our
work directly at the coalface.

CHENNAI, INDIA

Always being the first port of call for my
customers, developing mutual trust and
, , therefore being able to contribute towards
technotrans’ success through my work is
what has motivated me for 8 years now.

Partha Sarathy, Sales & Service Administrator

Close to the customer together

For me, the quality of the products and service are what critically determine how much | enjoy working in sales. It's so
much easier for us if our colleagues in Germany are coming up with brilliant solutions, are able to act on our feedback from
customers and the service procedures run smoothly. It makes me realise every day how important it is for us all to move
in the same direction. We serve India in very close partnership with our colleagues in Singapore. The fact that I'm working
in Chennai allows me to straddle two cultures. Indians and Asians have one thing in common: they appreciate technotrans
systems.

In my time here I've experienced a lot, met some great people, seen many interesting places and become acquainted with

innovative companies. And I've witnessed technotrans change and gain a foothold in many new industries. Accompanying
that process in sales has been and is incredibly exciting.
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BADEN-BADEN, GERMANY

termotek has been part of the technotrans
group since 20711. The best part of it is our

, options have increased, but we are still a
success with what we do best.

Aurélien Muller, Test Facility/Service Team Leader

Progress in the Black Forest

In Baden-Baden we build chillers mainly for applications in compact laser equipment. They are used in such areas as
medical technology, so need to operate very reliably. A quality management system to DIN ISO S001 is therefore self-
evident. Since we became part of the technotrans Group, we have been able to put more resources into our core skills and
have acquired plenty of new customers. My task is to make sure we supply consistently high quality and satisfy all the
requirements.

It's no longer enough just to talk of good products. Certifications and in-house tests above and beyond what is required

by law guarantee that exacting customers will equally want to work with us. So the fact that I'm a perfectionist and want
to get comprehensively acquainted with the subject matter certainly isn't a problem, and | feel really at home in the test

facility.

HUNFELD, GERMANY

Sprachenwelt is in some senses a one-of-a-
kind entity within the group. We draw on our

, , understanding of technology and language to
help provide legally sound, swift translations
for technotrans and many other businesses
worldwide.

Daniela Trost, Commercial Assistant

Talking about technology

Translating technical documentation or highly specialised texts in general needs abundant expertise. That is what our
specialist translators offer. With our linguistic background, we are experts at handling terminology, which is the key to the
translation process.

That makes us able not only to supply our clients with consistent, legally sound translations, but also to maximise the time
and cost saving. We therefore carry a big responsibility.

By handling a variety of languages and an array of technological products every day, there is never a dull moment in my
work.
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BAD DOBERAN, GERMANY

We build a wide variety of industrial

cooling systems in Bad Doberan. The high-
, , performance systems are used in many

different areas, and each one of them

presents specific requirements that we seek

to meet individually.

Stefan Titze, Head of Production

High performance for industry

These production operations demand plenty of flexibility of me and my team. The biggest challenge is that our systems
have to satisfy different conditions at each user. It's about much more than simply the cooling performance. So whether
we have to contend with extremely high temperatures, want to cool several systems centrally or are developing a very
energy-efficient cooling solution for lasers, many projects are tailored specially to our customers. That way, we cover a
large number of application areas and every performance range.

KLH and its companies have only been fully owned by the technotrans Group since 2016, but KLH has fitted in perfectly.
First, | was readily able to show my colleagues the benefits of the strong group structure. Second, all locations have come
together very well. Along with our sister company termotek, we now cover the entire performance range for refrigeration
technology, so we are a genuine full-liner.

BERLIN, GERMANY

Ovidius is a relatively recent addition to the
technotrans Group, but we've integrated

, , seamlessly within a short time. And we bring
special skills that further enhance the gds
portfolio in very specific areas.

Martyna Emilia Pietrzak, Sales Assistant

The end of the paper chase

At Ovidius, we specialise in XML and deal with every area of the entire content life cycle. That includes the XML editorial
system XR as well as ARC-Desk, a portal for review and approval processes. That's where | work on making approval and
review processes at companies simpler, swifter and more accurate.

My task is to support the users when introducing our systems. It's often a big step for them to switch from having bits of
paper everywhere to digital administration of processes. Once customers experience the advantages it brings and how
we simplify their day-to-day work, we often see and hear how thrilled they are. Obviously that's an added motivation for
me. Since we became part of the technotrans Group, we've enjoyed even more market opportunities thanks to the extra
resources available. Including for the benefit of our customers.
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MEINERZHAGEN, GERMANY

As the newest member of the technotrans
Group, we've learned a lot from each other

, , very quickly. My role at gwk is to develop
various versions of our temperature control
and cooling systems for high performance
ranges.

Klaus Cyriax, Area Sales Manager

There for each other

Atemperature control or central cooling system or linked systems may be used in virtually all the industries we supply.
Injection moulding, extrusion, plastics, metals, chemicals/pharmaceuticals or food - a single one of our large-scale
units for these areas can easily be the size of a container. One big challenge is to keep adapting to specific customer
requirements and then developing energy-saving but high-performance cooling systems.

As part of the technotrans Group, we have the backing of a strong organisation that makes it so much easier for us to

pursue our growth targets specifically in international markets. That means the customer requirements | encounter in my

day-to-day work are constantly changing. But also that our solutions are already proving successful in many markets
worldwide.
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To our shareholders
Report of the Supervisory Board

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Dear Shareholders,

The Supervisory Board of technotrans AG performed the
duties incumbent upon it under the law and in accordance
with the Articles of Incorporation and the Rules of Proce-
dure with considerable care in the past financial year of
2017. We regularly advised the Board of Management on
the running of the company and continuously oversaw its
activities. The Supervisory Board was involved directly and
at an early stage in all decisions of fundamental signifi-

cance for the company.

The Board of Management reported to us regularly,
promptly and comprehensively, both in writing and orally,
on the current status of transactions, the business perfor-
mance and the economic position, the prevailing risks, risk
management as well as relevant issues concerning compli-
ance, strategy and planning. The business transactions of
significance for technotrans were discussed in the com-
mittees and the plenary meetings on the basis of the
Board of Management's reports. Deviations in the business
performance from the prepared plans and targets were ex-
plained individually to the Supervisory Board and dis-
cussed at length by the Supervisory Board. The Board of
Management complied fully with the statutory reporting
obligations as well as with the reporting obligations under
the German Corporate Governance Code. In my capacity
as Supervisory Board Chairman, | was moreover in regular
contact with the Board of Management. | was informed in a
timely manner by the Board of Management of important
occurrences that are of material significance for evaluating

the situation, progress and management of the company.

In all, the Supervisory Board met for four regular meetings
in the presence of the Board of Management in the 2017
financial year, which took place on March 13, May 11,
September 20/21 and December 8, 2017. The recurring
subject matters of the ordinary meetings were the written
and oral reports of the Board of Management on the busi-
ness situation of technotrans AG and the group, in particu-
lar the current revenue and earnings performance as well
as the financial performance and net worth. The Supervi-

sory Board was informed in detail of and discussed signifi-
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cant business occurrences within the company, as well as
its strategy and the implementation thereof, and also its
approach to risk management. All members of the Supervi-
sory Board and Board of Management were present at all
meetings, except for the meeting on December 8, 2017,
which Dr Soest did not attend.

The Supervisory Board again oversaw the management
activities of the Board of Management in the 2017 financial
year, regularly advised the Board of Management on the
running of the company, and - following thorough exami-
nation and consultations - approved the transactions that
require its consent in accordance with the law and the Ar-
ticles of Incorporation. These include decisions and mea-
sures which are of fundamental significance for the finan-

cial position and financial performance of the company.

Key themes of the Supervisory Board meetings in 2017

A hallmark of the past financial year was the methodical
development of the business activities of technotrans AG
and the operational and strategic development of its par-
ticipating interests and the divisions, as well as the integra-
tion into the technotrans Group of the subsidiaries ac-
quired in the previous year. This was most notably the
case for the integration of GWK Gesellschaft Warme Kal-
tetechnik mbH. Other recurring discussion and agenda
items were the planned conversion of technotrans AG into
a European Company (Societas Europaea, SE) as well as
human resources developments affecting the Board of
Management. At its scheduled meetings the Supervisory
Board also considered the reports by the Board of Man-
agement on the business situation, the general acquisi-
tions strategy, the strategic direction of the company, as-
pects of risk management, preventive compliance work

and corporate governance.

The first meeting on March 13, 2017 focused on the pre-
sentation and discussion of the 2016 annual financial
statements of technotrans AG, the technotrans 2016 Con-
solidated Financial Statements and the accompanying res-
olution, as well as approval of the agenda for the Annual

General Meeting on May 12, 2017 together with the resolu-
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tion proposals set forth therein. The appointment of KPMG
AG Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Bielefeld, as the audi-
tors of the annual financial statements and Consolidated
Financial Statements for the 2017 financial year was made
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and pur-
suant to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
May 12, 2017. Other agenda items included in particular
status reports on the integration of GWK Gesellschaft
Warme Kaltetechnik mbH and on current projects. Other
business included the consent given by the Supervisory
Board for the purchase of land and the construction of a
new production and office building in Baden-Baden, for the
exercising of a call option in respect of Ovidius GmbH, for a
capital increase at technotrans group (Taicang) co. Ltd. and
for the establishment of technotrans Grundsticksverwal-
tungs GmbH.

The Supervisory Board meeting held on May 11, 2017 be-
fore the Annual General Meeting addressed such matters
as preparations for the Annual General Meeting on the fol-
lowing day and an update on the motions submitted. As
there were no counterproposals, the Supervisory Board
considered at length the report on the business perfor-
mance in the first four months of 2017. The Board of Man-
agement also gave a status report on the integration and
operational development of GWK Gesellschaft Warme Kal-
tetechnik mbH. The examination of a possible conversion

of technotrans AG into an SE was in addition discussed.

As well as the business performance of the group between
January 1, 2017 and August 371, 2017, the main areas for
discussion at the meeting on September 20 and 21, 2017
were the integration and operational development of GWK
Gesellschaft Warme Kaltetechnik mbH, the technical de-
velopments in individual product lines of the technotrans
Group and the corporate strategy, the development of the
Baden-Baden location, corporate governance of the group
and future sustainability reporting under the CSR Directive
Implementation Act. Business conducted at this meeting
included the agreement of new Rules of Procedure for the
Supervisory Board, targets for the proportion of women on
the Supervisory Board and Board of Management pur-
suant to Section 111 (5) of the German Stock Corporation
Act and for the composition of the Supervisory Board, as

well as a current Declaration of Compliance.
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The final meeting of the Supervisory Board on

December 8, 2017 was devoted to planning the forecast
and budgeting for the 2018 financial year including rev-
enue, cost, profit, investment and human resources plan-
ning, rough planning for the next few years as well as the
concluding of new target agreements for the 2018 finan-
cial year. After full discussions and consultations, the Su-
pervisory Board approved the annual plans submitted by
the Board of Management for the 2018 financial year. Fi-
nally, the current status of the planned conversion of
technotrans AG into a European Company was discussed
at this meeting, for example in respect of future changes
to the Articles of Incorporation and the forthcoming nego-
tiations between the Special Negotiating Committee and
the Board of Management.

The members of the Supervisory Board are sufficiently in-
dependent and have sufficient time to serve as non-exec-
utive directors. They always had ample opportunity to as-
sess the reports and resolution proposals of the Board of
Management with a critical eye in plenary meetings, and
also to contribute their own suggestions. In accordance
with the recommendation in the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code, the Supervisory Board members of
technotrans AG disclose any conflicts of interest to the
Supervisory Board without delay. Dr Norbert Brocker, the
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board, is partner in
the law firm Hoffmann Liebs Fritsch & Partner. The firm
provided legal advice for technotrans AG on a variety of
topics in the past financial year. The Supervisory Board of
technotrans AG approved the individual activities of Hoff-
mann Liebs Fritsch & Partner as well as the consultancy
fees arising, in each case in the context of the Supervisory
Board meetings stated above. To avoid any conflicts of in-
terest, Dr Brocker abstained from those votes. No other
potential conflicts of interest that are to be disclosed to
the Supervisory Board and would need to be reported at
the Annual General Meeting arose in the year under review.
To enable it to fulfil its duties more efficiently, the Supervi-

sory Board has formed three committees.

The Supervisory Board has an Audit Committee, a Commit-
tee for Board of Management Affairs and a Nominating
Committee with the task of proposing suitable Supervisory
Board candidates to the Supervisory Board for its election
proposals to the Annual General Meeting.
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The Nominating Committee did not meet in the 2017 cal-

endar year.

The Committee for Board of Management Affairs met on
June 8, 2017, November 9, 2017 and December 7, 2017
and addressed in particular general human resources de-
velopments concerning the composition of the Board of
Management, the new appointment to be made in connec-
tion with the exit of Dr Soest and the personnel selection
process that this necessitated. Beyond the meetings, this
task also included identifying suitable successor candi-
dates, interviewing applicants and preparing the signing of
contracts. Other aspects discussed in the Committee for
Board of Management Affairs concerned especially the re-
muneration development of and extending of existing con-
tracts with the Board of Management members Henry

Brickenkamp and Dirk Engel.

The Audit Committee met twice in the past financial year,
on March 6, 2017 and December 7, 2017, in each case in
the presence of representatives of the auditors as well as
Board of Management members (except that Dr Soest did
not attend the committee meeting on December 7, 2017),
and addressed matters concerning the annual financial
statements for the 2016 financial year, the presentation of
the accounts, controlling and risk management. Other as-
pects included fiscal matters, compliance audits, assuring
the necessary independence of the auditors, the recom-
mendation of the Audit Committee to mandate the audi-
tors with the audit task for 2017 as well as the audit of the
2015 annual financial statements by the Financial Report-
ing Enforcement Panel (FREP). The Chairman of the Audit
Committee also maintained a close, regular exchange of in-
formation and views with myself between the committee

meetings.

The audit reports and accounting records for the 2017 fi-
nancial year as well as the Board of Management's pro-
posal on the appropriation of profit for the 2017 financial
year were sent to all Supervisory Board members in good
time. These were discussed at length and in detail both by
the Audit Committee at its meeting on March 5, 2018 and
by the Supervisory Board at its meeting on March 12,
2018. At both meetings, the responsible representatives of
the auditors of the accounts also reported in person on the
key findings of their examinations and were available for

additional questions and information. For the first time the
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Supervisory Board also examined the new non-financial
group declaration, which technotrans AG must now pre-
pare under the CSR Directive Implementation Act. The Su-
pervisory Board had already addressed this new declara-
tion on sustainability and CSR aspects ahead of time at
the Supervisory Board meeting on September 20/21, 2017
and the audit obligation in that respect. No material weak-
nesses in the internal accounting system were reported.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee, too, reported at
length to the Supervisory Board on the examinations of
the Audit Committee. Both the annual financial statements
of technotrans AG for the 2017 financial year prepared by
the Board of Management in accordance with the German
Commercial Code (HGB) and the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the 2017 financial year, which were pre-
pared pursuant to Section 315a of HGB on the basis of the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as well
as the Combined Management Report, were examined by
the auditors and were in each case granted an unqualified
audit certificate.

Following the conclusion of our own examination of the an-
nual financial statements, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Combined Management Report, we
raised no objections to the findings of the audit and at our
meeting on March 12, 2018 signed off the annual financial
statements and Consolidated Financial Statements pre-
pared by the Board of Management. Nor did the examina-
tion of the non-financial declaration give rise to any objec-
tions. The annual financial statements for the 2017 finan-
cial year are thus established. Following its own examina-
tion the Supervisory Board supports the proposal of the

Board of Management on the appropriation of profit.

The Supervisory Board takes this opportunity to thank the
Board of Management and all employees of the group for
their commendable dedication. Together they all showed
great dedication in shaping the company’s ambitious de-
velopment in the 2017 financial year. My particular thanks
are moreover due to the employees’ representatives, who
yet again cooperated constructively and openly with the
company’s corporate bodies, and to the shareholders,
many of who have now been involved in technotrans AG
for quite a number of years. We would also like to thank Dr
Soest, who left the Board of Management at his own re-
quest with effect from the end of 2017, for his work,
through which he has made a dedicated and effective con-
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tribution to the company’s successful developmentin re-
cent years.

We take this opportunity to welcome the new Board of
Management members Hendirk Niestert and Dr Andreas J
Schmid, and wish them a successful future in the
technotrans Group. The appointment of two new Board of
Management members comes in anticipation of the fact
that Chief Executive Officer Henry Brickenkamp has de-
cided not to renew his contract, which expires mid-way
through the year. We the Supervisory Board will lend our
constructive support to the newly composed Board of

Management for the further development of the

Corporate Governance Report

The joint report by the Board of Management and Supervi-
sory Board of technotrans AG on corporate governance,
including the declaration of compliance with the Code
adopted in September 2017, is published at https://
www.technotrans.com/en/investor-relations/corpo-
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technotrans Group in its future legal form of a European
Company.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

Heinz Harling

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

rate-governance/corporate-governance-
declaration.html in accordance with section 3.10 of the
German Corporate Governance Code in connection with
the corporate governance declaration.
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CORPORATE BODIES

Board of Management

Dipl.-Wirtsch.-Ing. Henry Brickenkamp

Chief Executive Officer

Dipl.-Kfm. Dirk Engel

Member of the Board of Management

Dipl.-Ing (FH) Hendirk Niestert

Member of the Board of Management

Dr.-Ing. Dipl.-Phys. Andreas J. Schmid

Member of the Board of Management

Dr.-Ing,, Dipl.-Wirtsch.-Ing. Christof Soest

Member of the Board of Management
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Since 2005 Sales Director, since 2006 deputy Board member since 2007
full Board member and since May 2008 Chief Executive Officer.
Responsible for the Products and Markets division (Sales and Service

waorldwide, business units, tt industrial system solutions and Marketing).

Head of Group Accounts since 2004, Chief Financial Officer since 2006.
Responsible for the Finance and Administration division (Finance/ Control-

ling, Personnel, IT, Legal Support and Investor Relations).

Since 2007 service directar, since February 2018 member of the board

Responsible for Sales, Service and Quality Management areas.

since February 2018 member of the board
Responsible for the Development, Controls, Business Units, Production,

Purchasing and Logistics areas.

Until December 2017 member of the Board of Management.

Responsible for the Technology and Operations division (Production and
Quality Management worldwide, Purchasing, Logistics, Development, Elec-
trical Engineering and CPS).
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Members of the Supervisory Board

Reinhard Aufderheide

Dr. Norbert Brocker

Dipl.-Ing. Heinz Harling

Dr. Wolfgang Hoper

Dipl.-Ing. (FH) Thomas Poppenberg

Dipl.-Kfm. Dieter Schafer

Committees

Annual Report 2017

To our shareholders

Corporate bodies

technotrans AG, Sassenberg (employees’ representative)

Deputy chairman of the supervisory board
Partner of Law Firm Hoffmann Liebs Fritsch & Partner Rechtsanwalte mbB,
Dusseldorf

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of technotrans AG
Lecturer at Hamm-Lippstadt University of Applied Sciences
Member of the supervisory board of elexis AG

Entrepreneur
Member of the advisory board of SchaferRolls GmbH & Co. KG

Member of the advisory board of Dr. Hahn GmbH & Co. KG

Employees representative
Design manager, at technotrans since 2004

Chairman of the audit committee

Industry consultant for machine tool manufacturing companies

Audit Committee
Messrs Schafer, Harling, Dr. Hoper

Nominating Committee:

Messrs Harling, Dr. Brocker, Dr. Hoper, Schafer

Personnel Committee:

Messrs Harling, Dr. Brocker, Dr. Hoper
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TECHNOTRANS ON THE CAPITAL MARKET - SHARES

The stock market year of 2017 held various surprises in
store for all market operators. Not only did stock markets
perform far better than many market professionals had
believed possible at the start of the year. The performance

figures for individual stocks were also astonishing.

Share Price (January 1, 2017 to December 29, 2017)

— technotrans AG =— TecDAX =— SDAX

Mar 2017 May 2017

technotrans shares again continued their impressive up-
ward trend in the 2017 financial year to close at

EUR 44.30 on December 29, 2017, a gain of more than

93 percent on the start of the financial year (EUR 22.90).
The price performance of technotrans shares in 2017 con-
sequently again outstripped all relevant benchmark indices
(especially the SDAX and TecDAX). Market capitalisation
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Jul 2017

To summarise, 2017 was a positive year for investors. On
the back of a 6.9 rise in 2016, the DAX climbed by more
than 12 percent over 2017. The other indices advanced
even more resoundingly; the MDAX, TecDAX and SDAX
were up 18 percent, 39 percent and 25 percent respec-

tively on the previous year.

%
220
210
RQ0
190
180
170
160
150
140

130

10
100

S0

Sep 2017 Nov 2017

climbed from EUR 158 million to EUR 306 million in the
year under review (reporting date December 29, 2017).
2017 also saw an improvement in the trading volume of
technotrans shares and therefore in its position in the Tec-
DAX rankings. The daily trading volume rose to an average

of 16,192 shares (previous year 8,993 shares).
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Performance of technotrans shares (XETRA) in 2017

In the first half of the year, the shares benefited both from
the improving state of the market and from expectations
of further economic stimuli from technotrans’ growth mar-
kets (electric mobility). In the second half of the year, the
healthy first-half figures and the upgraded revenue and
earnings forecast for 2017 also impacted the trading price
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positively. The shares peaked at a year-high of EUR 51.71
on October 4. The trading price fell back slightly at the end
of the financial year as a result of profit-taking. As in the
previous year, the highest volume of trades was again
achieved via XETRA, which accounted for 80 percent on

average.
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Capital market oriented

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Trading price (Xetra closing price)
High in€ 50.75 24.77 19.90 9.56 10.35
Low in€ 2217 15.75 9.21 741 6.90
End of financial year in€ 44.30 22.90 19.30 9.28 771
Number of shares Units 6907665 6907665 6530588 6516434 6,493,474
at the end of the period
Market capitalisation €'000 306,010 158,186 126,040 60,473 50,065
Net profit per share (basic, IFRS) in€ 176 109 096 067 0.47
Dividend per share in€ 0.88 0.55 048 0.33 0.20

Investor Relations Work

Our investor relations work maintains a continuous and
open exchange of information with all capital market play-
ers. Our goal is to establish transparency and to promote
an understanding of our business model and of the value
drivers within our strategy. The Board of Management
sought a steady dialogue with existing and potential in-
vestors in the period under review. Both Chief Executive
Officer Henry Brickenkamp and Chief Financial Officer Dirk
Engel took part in capital market events, conferences and
roadshows in Germany and internationally with that pur-
pose in mind. As well regularly publishing up-to-date infor-
mation about technotrans, the Board of Management held
one-to-one meetings and interviews with analysts and

business journalists. technotrans maintains the dialogue

Shareholder Structure
The free float of technotrans shares at the reporting date

of December 31, 2017 represents around 77 percent of the

share capital. The biggest shareholders of technotrans AG
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with private shareholders through the Annual General
Meeting and personal contacts. The share performance in-
creasingly attracted attention among investors in 2017.
The marked progress in strategic further development is
rated positively by six analysts (Bankhaus Lampe, M.M.
Warburg, equinet, Hauck & Aufhauser, HSBC Trinkaus und
Burkhardt, and ODDO BHF). The analysts’ price targets for
technotrans shares currently range between EUR 43 and
EUR 56, and without exception represent recommenda-
tions to buy or hold. We provide a steady flow of informa-
tion about active capital market work on the company’s
website and post the regular publications and the financial

calendar for the current year there.

are institutional investors with long-term investment hori-

zons from Germany and other European countries.

Annual Report 2017



Shareholdings at the end of 2017 (in %)

.

Proposed Dividend

The Board of Management and Supervisory Board will pro-
pose to the Annual General Meeting on May 18, 2018 that
a dividend of € 0.88 per share be distributed for the past
financial year of 2017. This represents a dividend yield of
2.0 percent, compared with 1.5 percent in the previous
year. technotrans reached important milestones in its
strategic further development in the year under review, as

well as achieved pleasing revenue and profit growth. Our

To our shareholders

technotrans on the capital market - shares

Freefloat (76.9%)

Objectif Small Cap (6.3%)

Midlin NV (NL) (3.2%)

Gerlin NV (NL) (5.0%)

Union Investment Privatfonds GmbH (DE) (4.9%)
[l LOYSInvestment SA(LUX] (3.7%)

proposal ensures that our shareholders participate appro-
priately in the company's profit performance, in keeping
with our established dividend policy. The profit distribution
policy envisages the distribution of up to 50 percent of
consolidated net profit. Such a distribution is subject to the
annual financial statements of technotrans AG showing an

accumulated profit.

Dividend
Financial year 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Dividend per share in€ 0ss’ 0.55 048 0.33 0.20
Payout ratio in % 50% 50% 50% 49% 43%
Amount distributed €'000 5,0793 3,799 3138 2,151 1,299
Dividend yield 2 in% 2.0% 15% 2.8% 21% 2.3%

1 .
Proposal to the Annual Meeting

2 Dividend payment / technotrans trading price on day of Annual General Meeting; for FY 2017: dividend payment / technotrans tradin price at year end
Based on the estimated number of dividend-bearing shares for the past financial year on the day of the Annual General Meeting
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Basic profile of the group

GROUP STRUCTURE

Organisational and Legal Corporate Structure

The technotransGroup is an international technology and
service company that concentrates on customer-specific
applications in the field of liquid technology. The parent
company technotrans AG, with its registered office in
Sassenberg (Westphalia), directly or indirectly has a major-
ity interest in 21 subsidiaries.

The group’s activities comprise on the one hand the pro-
duction plants and on the other hand the sales and service
companies. The production plants specialise by business
segment and product line.

The technotrans sales and service companies are respon-
sible for direct sales and service of our products. As a sup-
plementary measure our Key Account Management sup-

ports major international customers.
The technotrans Group does not have financial holdings.

An overview of the ownership structure within the group is
presented in the Notes, under “Consolidated Companies”.

30

The group’s structure is designed so that all companies
can make a contribution towards strengthening the world-
wide market position of the group.

With a total of 1,329 employees (December 31, 2017) at 19
locations as well as a large number of partnerships, the
technotrans Group has a presence in all important markets

worldwide.

To boost technotrans group (taicang) co. Itd., Taicang,
China, both the business operations of KLH Cooling Inter-
national Pte. Ltd, Singapore and the business operations of
GWK Heating and Cooling Technology (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
were taken over in the 2017 financial year and a capital in-

crease of € 0.8 million was carried out.

In October 2017, EasyBrowse GmbH, Schwerin, was
merged with Ovidius GmbH, Berlin. In addition, two new
companies were established in the financial year.
technotrans Grundsticksverwaltungs GmbH, Sassenberg,
will be erecting the new business premises for Termotek
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GmbH at its Baden-Baden location in the 20718 financial permanent establishment of technotrans Asia Pacific lim-
year. With effect from January 1, 2018 technotrans japan ited, Hong Kong, which has previously been situated in
KK. Kobe, Japan, took over the business operations of the Japan.
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BUSINESS MODEL

Segments

The Group's business is divided into two segments: Tech-
nology and Services. The Technology segment generates
72 percent of consolidated revenue. In this business area
technotrans develops and sells equipment and systems
based on its core skills in liquid technology. technotrans
pools its specialist knowledge in three technology busi-
ness units (BU): cooling and temperature control (“temper-
ature control” BU), filtering and separating (“fluid condition-
ing” BU), and spraying and pumping of liquids ("ink & fluid
technology” BU). They are the result of intensive research
and many years of experience. The focus is on customer-
specific equipment and systems that technotrans devel-
ops as a leading systems supplier for performing essential
functions as part of a specific application, therefore con-
tributing towards optimising the overall quality and effi-
ciency of the user’s processes.

The company is steadily broadening its product range in

Markets and Customers
Sales and Service now focus their worldwide activities on

four subsidiary markets within the mechanical and plant

engineering sector: the printing industry, the plastics pro-
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close collaboration with existing and potential customers,
including many renowned industrial enterprises, with a
view to opening up new application areas and sales mar-

kets in order to safeguard its long-term growth.

The Technology segment is complemented by the Services
segment. A large range of services, for example the world-
wide parts supply, as well as repair and installation ser-
vices, completes the activities of technotrans. These also
include providing customer support for the maintenance
and operation of systems.

Other services in the Technical Documentation area also
come under this segment. The subsidiaries gds GmbH, gds
Sprachenwelt GmbH and Ovidius GmbH compile and trans-
late primarily technical documentation and also market
their self-developed software solutions that customers

can use to create and manage documents.

cessing industry, the laser and machine tool industry, and
separately identified growth markets. The latter include

medical technology and electric mobility.
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technotrans has been an important supplier and reliable
partner to the global printing industry for very many years.
Since the financial crisis, the market for print products has
now stabilised with a worldwide print volume in excess of
€ 400 billion annually. In terms of the technology involved,
sheet-fed offset, flexographic and digital printing methods
account for two-thirds of the print volume. technotrans of-
fers customer-specific products and services for these,
and supplies virtually all leading printing press manufactur-
ers. Our market share here is well over 50 percent. The
large installed base and the cyclical nature of the propen-
sity to invest mean that - in addition to service business in
the narrower sense - modernisation and retrofit business
directly with end customers likewise generates a signifi-
cant proportion of revenue. technotrans generates around
42 percent of consolidated revenue in the printing indus-

try.

In the plastics industry, the second-largest source of rev-
enue, technotrans has emerged as a high-performance
partner for mould temperature control and machine cool-
ing in both injection moulding and plastics extrusion,
through GWK Gesellschaft Warme Kaltetechnik mbH (gwk).
Temperature control and cooling have a huge influence on
the quality of moulded parts and the economic efficiency

of the production process.

Robust cooling technology that is ideally matched to the
application is a prerequisite for a stable and economical
production process in the laser and machine tool industry.
For a number of years, technotrans has been serving this
market with high-quality system solutions in the field of
cooling, temperature control and filtering of liquids through
its production companies Termotek GmbH and KLH Kal-
tetechnik GmbH.

The significance of electric mobility is growing rapidly
worldwide. For this growing market, technotrans supplies
cooling systems for lithium-ion batteries for both mabile
and stationary applications. The use of cooling and tem-
perature control systems extends the operating life of

high-performance batteries in electric vehicles and static
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energy storage devices. technotrans products are used for
example in electric buses, trams and trains, in AGVs (auto-
mated guided vehicles) but also in battery charging points
and in inverters for energy conversion. In medical and
scanner technology, customers also call upon technotrans’
tailormade cooling solutions as integral components or as

external, central overall concepts

The principal business processes encompass the develop-
ment, assembly, testing and sale of equipment, along with
all relevant services for major customers and their end
users. technotrans’ chosen level of manufacturing pene-
tration enables it to respond flexibly and cost-effectively
to the requirements of customers. The most recent acqui-
sition gwk in addition offers extra scope for value creation

within the group.

The investment propensity of the target industries in
which the technotrans Group is active regularly has a ma-
jorimpact on the group’s business performance. That
propensity is in turn influenced by the present and antici-
pated economic situation. In view of its focus on the Ger-
man mechanical and plant engineering sectors, cyclical
fluctuations there have a marked influence on its business
performance. The specific branching-out of business ac-
tivities into high-growth industries such as the plastics in-
dustry, the laser industry as well as energy storage or
medical technology help to further significantly reduce
that correlation in future.

With the exception of the printing industry, the market in
the other market segments where technotrans is active is
served by a large number of suppliers. In those instances
the competitive environment for technotrans is highly
fragmented. A major success factor for technotrans there-
fore stems from its positioning as a systems supplier of
complex, customer-specific solutions with its own global
service network, unlike out-and-out components suppliers.
technotrans is steadily consolidating its target position as
market leader in its chosen niche markets. The market en-
try barriers for potential competitors are therefore for the

most part high.
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Research and Development

The research and development area is the basis for the
group’s future success. Spending on such activities rose
by 36 percent in the year under review of 2017, to

€ 7.5 million (previous year: € 5.5 million). gwk was a major
factor in this change, because it was consolidated within
the technotrans Group for the first time in autumn 20716.

Research & Development

Financial year

The R&D ratio (development spending in relation to consol-
idated revenue) of 3.7 percent overall was again at the
level of the previous year (3.6 percent). If R&D spending is
expressed in the usual way in relation to revenue for the

Technology segment, the figures are as shown in the table.

R&D spending !
' )
Innovation ratio
s .3
Capitalisation ratio

Capitalised development 4

€'000

€'000

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
7528 5534 4,293 3,382 2,985
51 53 53 46 45
46 0.0 41 49 226
836 832 1195 1439 1,583

R&D spending refers to the revenue for the Technology segment
Capitalised development costs refer to R&D spending

1
2
3
4 Residual carrying amounts

R&D spending persuant to Consolidated Income Statement, in 2016 thereof € 479 thousand from acquisitions

As in previous years, technotrans fundamentally recog-
nises development spending in the Income Statement. If
the appropriate requirements are satisfied, development
expenditure is booked as an intangible asset pursuant to
IAS 38 and recognised as such on the balance sheet. The
development expenditure recognised as an intangible as-
set of € 0.4 million (previous year: € 0.0 million) contrasted
with depreciation and amortisation of € 0.4 million (previ-
ous year: € 0.4 million). The capitalisation ratio, in other
words the ratio of development expenditure recognised as
an intangible asset to R&D spending, is reported as

4.6 percent for 2017. Further explanatory notes are pro-

vided in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial State-
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ments under the Notes to the Balance Sheet 3) "Intangible

Assets”.

The Board of Management believes the level of develop-
ment expenditure reached is necessary to actively provide
the technology that substantiates the group'’s process of
transformation. For its research and development activities
in the past financial year, technotrans concentrated above
all on projects and methods that improve energy efficiency
and save resources for customers. Meanwhile technotrans
continues to build on its existing skills in the technology-
oriented areas in order to permanently bolster its market
position.
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Purchasing, Production and Quality

Procurement and supply chain management are very im-
portant for technotrans. Organic and non-organic growth
as well as product diversification entail a raft of new re-
quirements for the entire materials management side.
Alongside growth in business operations and the expan-
sion of supplier management, optimisation concepts need
to be put into practice in Procurement. Flexibility for the
technotrans locations in conjunction with an expansion of

the lead buyer principle remain the focus.

technotrans has implemented a continuous improvement
process at all production locations. Programmes to boost
productivity and efficiency are continuously being imple-
mented, and potential improvements identified and gradu-
ally rolled out. Reducing interfaces in production
processes, new production concepts, the adoption of shop
floor management and optimised internal logistics con-
cepts are some of the priority topics that we are focusing
on at the locations. Lean concepts and internal supply

chain management reflect the approach and objective. Be-
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cause different products and product ranges are made at
all locations, the challenge is to adopt appropriate optimi-
sation concepts and generate mutual benefits by system-
atically sharing findings.

Quality, alongside economic efficiency, is a core value of
technotrans products. We are continually improving quality
management in order to supply customers with reliable
equipment swiftly, often after only a short time in develop-
ment. technotrans also regards itself as a quality leader
within its field of competitors. With that in mind, multi-site
management was introduced in 2016 to harmonise the
methods and processes of different group locations while
also reducing the burden of auditing work. The new quality
management certificate to DIN/ISO S001:2015 was also
audited. The group benefits here from a strategic approach
that also encompasses the subsidiaries. 2017 saw quality
- expressed in terms of the rate of warranty cases - re-

main stable year on year at a consistently low level.

35



Combined management report

Basic profile of the group

GOALS AND STRATEGIES

Over recent years we have successfully completed the re-
organisation of technotrans into a sustainably profitable
business. The key moves were the shift in strategy and
structures following the global economic crisis
(2008-2009) and the focus on new growth areas.

The overriding goal of the technotrans Group is to increase
the value of the company in the long term. The corporate
strategy is geared towards steadily expanding the current
market position as a specialist for liquid technology (fluid
management and thermal management). To achieve that
goal, technotrans concentrates on its core skills while fo-
cusing investment on measures that enable it to expand
its product range further and gain a foothold in new appli-
cation areas. Organic growth is also generated through
partnerships in the areas where its core skills are called for.
Targeted acquisitions are another driver of growth.
technotrans focuses to a very large extent on niche mar-
kets where it is possible to achieve a market share in the
region of 50 percent or more, taking into account the scale
of its own business and the available resources. This is the
key to being able to capitalise on ecanomies of scale in of-
fering our customers both technology and prices that are
benchmarks. technotrans is well-placed to realise such
goals thanks to its clear focus on system partnerships
with major industrial clients (OEM) which operate worldwide

and expect their suppliers to have a similar organisation.

Our growth potential comes from tapping into new indus-
tries and applications, expanding our international cus-
tomer base and capitalising on cross-selling effects in the
various areas of business. Developing new products
through technological innovation and providing customer-
specific solutions that are based on standard platforms are

also part of our strategy.

Increasing customer benefit: Our product portfolio and
processes are continually being revised and are evolving in
tandem with changing customer requirements. As a sys-
tems supplier to the printing industry, technotrans has
held a leading position in its product areas for many years.
Based on our close ties with the manufacturers of offset

as well as digital and flexographic printing presses, along
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with our unique expertise, we intend to consolidate our role
as technology partner in this industry and beyond, and -
wherever possible - build on it.

The growth strategy’s implementation is supported by the
corporate structure in that the three business units - in
which the core skills are concentrated - and also the inter-
national sales and service locations are given growth tar-

gets to realise.

Given the economy's digital transformation, it is only logical
to revisit the business models of the technotrans Group.
As specialists in their niches, the group companies face
the challenge of seizing their opportunities promptly so
that they can retain or extend their market position and

access new markets.

Broadening the business base: By addressing a variety of
markets, the group is not as heavily dependent on the
business cycles of individual industries. This enables it to
absorb fluctuations more easily, giving it greater stability.
technotrans will also continue to extend its business base
in future. This entails both the further penetration of es-
tablished markets and entry into new industries and appli-
cation fields, making use of technotrans’ core skills.

In order to achieve its growth targets, it has been success-
fully developing and expanding new applications outside

the printing industry for a number of years.

Promoting internationalisation: Today, markets today are
global - including for SMEs. That obliges a number of com-
panies in the technotrans Group to step up the develop-

ment of their international activities.

As well as organically accessing new markets,
technotrans’ growth strategy involves the acquisition of
companies with core skills that specifically complement
those present in every area of the group. Acquisitions are
fundamentally structured in such a way that they directly
deliver increased value added. Wherever possible and ad-
visable, we bind the holders of key expertise to the com-

pany in the longer term.
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Deepening integration: Across the group, capacities and po-
tential are being integrated to put them to optimum effect.
The aim is to create long-term value added in every area of
the company. To increase efficiency further, we will ad-
vance the projects designed to develop the group and in-
creasingly harmonise processes and structures.
technotrans'’ strategies include the systematic expansion
of shared infrastructures and cross-disciplinary functions,
for instance in procurement or the international sales and

service network.

Profitable growth will remain the focus of technotrans'

strategic development. The company has set itself the

Principles and goals of financial and liquidity management

Based on a comfortable liquidity base, in conjunction with
financing commitments by the banks, technotrans is able
to invest flexibly at any time. The task of financial manage-
ment within the technotrans Group is handled centrally by
the group parent.

Financial and liquidity management primarily involves man-
aging liquidity, securing borrowed capital and managing in-
terest and foreign currency risks. To a large extent the
group constitutes a financial entity and is thus able to opti-
mise its capital procurement and investment opportunities.
The overriding goal of technotrans’ financial policy is to as-
sure a balance between growth, return on equity and fi-
nancing security.

In its financial management, technotrans continues to
strive to generate internally both the financial resources
required to fund the organic growth of its operations, and
the investments this involves. This goal was again

achieved in the 2017 financial year.

The most important source of financing remains the cash
inflow from operating activities (operating cash flow). The
optimisation of working capital releases liquid funds, keeps
debt low and thus improves the indicators relating to bal-
ance sheet structure (such as equity ratio) and return on

investment.
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goal of growing faster than the market. By 2020 it aims to
increase consolidated revenue to around € 300 million. In
pursuit of that goal, the new growth markets of the group
in particular have been identified as sources of overpropor-
tional revenue growth over the coming years. The growth-
oriented measures in addition include acquiring comple-
mentary business areas, technologies or products. The
Board of Management seeks a steady improvement in the
return on sales (EBIT margin).

A sustained ability to distribute dividends and sound fi-
nancing based on a high equity ratio also feature in the

group's overall goal.

Limiting risks encompasses all financial risks that could
threaten technotrans' continuation as a going concern.
technotrans makes use of selected derivative financial in-
struments exclusively for the hedging of interest rate risks

for borrowings incurring interest at variable rates.

technotrans covers its capital requirements from operating
cash flow and by raising medium and long-term financing.
If required, the company also manages the group’s need
for financing via the available short-term credit facilities of
technotrans AG, Termotek GmbH, KLH Kaltetechnik GmbH
and GWK Gesellschaft Warme Kaltetechnik mbH. Bank
borrowings amounted to € 23.0 million (previous year:

€ 28.1 million) at the balance sheet date.

For financing, technotrans uses its long-standing associa-
tion with several German financial institutions. Stabilising
factors in long-term financing include a broadly spread
credit volume as well as a balanced repayment structure

for alternative financial instruments.

There are no exchange-rate factors affecting external bor-
rowings. Within the group, short-term and long-term lend-
ing between the group companies is practised to some de-
gree in order to maintain adequate liquidity locally. Sub-
stantial liquidity holdings (cash and cash equivalents)
moreover exist in EUR, USD, GBP and AED at the balance
sheet date. No instruments for the hedging of foreign cur-
rency positions were used beyond the 2017 reporting date.
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Off-balance-sheet forms of financing used by technotrans
include above all tenancy and operating leases, above all
for IT accessories and company vehicles. Future operating

Capital structure

technotrans' capital structure comprises a sound equity
base and a demand-led level of borrowing. With an equity
ratio of 55.7 percent at December 31, 2017 (previous year:
51.0 percent) and total borrowing arrangements amounting
to € 40.0 million (previous year: € 46.5 million),
technotrans has a viable and sustainable financing struc-
ture. At the balance sheet date, cash and cash equivalents
came to € 14.8 million (previous year: € 23.9 million) and
available but unused borrowing facilities amounted to

€ 17.0 million.

No new financing was raised in the course of 2017.

At December 31, 2017 the maturities of the group’s exist-
ing debt financing averaged four years. Short-term credit
lines were used only intermittently in the past financial
year. At the end of the financial year the average weighted
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lease obligations at December 31, 2017 totalled
€ 4.6 million (previous year: € 5.6 million).

interest rate for borrowing was approx. 1.7 percent (previ-
ous year: 1.8 percent). Wherever economically advisable,
technotrans supplements financing by operating lease
agreements. Other off-balance-sheet financial instru-
ments are of only minor significance. In 2017 there were no

restrictions on the availability of the loans provided.

For its financial and liquidity planning, technotrans AG is
working on the assumption that it will have adequate lig-
uidity including for business operations in 2018, enabling it
to meet its foreseeable payment obligations at all times.
Based on a sound equity base and a comfortable liquidity
base, in conjunction with financing commitments by the
banks, technotrans is able to invest flexibly at any time.
As 3 listed company, technotrans also has access to capi-

tal market instruments.
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CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board of Management of technotrans AG uses first
and foremost financial performance indicators to manage
the group. Non-financial performance indicators in addition
provide an important decision-making basis for corporate

management.

The technotrans Group's internal control system has the
purpose of overseeing implementation of the corporate
strategy. The control system basically comprises regular
strategic discussions within the Board of Management and

in-year planning discussions - including investment and

Financial Performance Indicators

technotrans AG and its group companies are managed first
and foremost on the basis of revenue and earnings ratios
(EBIT margin]. These control parameters are in each case
determined, planned and continuously monitored for the
group, the reportable segments Technology and Services,
as well as for the individual group companies including the

parent.
For the management of the group, technotrans in addition

refers to other financial indicators such as the equity ratio

and gearing ratio, as well as the free cash flow (the cash
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personnel planning aspects - with the individual managing
directors of the companies, as well as a monthly analysis
of their respective business performance. The system
seeks to identify deviations as early on as possible so that
swift action can be taken as appropriate. Over and above
this, the individual managing directors monitor and analyse
their respective markets and specific competitive environ-
ment and report to the Board of Management on material
changes to it, and on the opportunities and risks. The
Board of Management submits regular reports to the Su-
pervisory Board.

flow from operating activities less the cash payments from

the chash flow for investment activities).

The 2017 financial year was another very successful one
for the technotrans Group. Both the targeted growth and
the margin targets were achieved, and both operating seg-

ments report improved results.

The following table provides an overview of key financial

and control indicators for the technotrans Group:
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Actual and forecast business development

2016 Forecast 2016 adjusted 2017

Management forecast

Report Quarterly

Communication

Q2-2017
Revenue € million 1518 185 -195 203 - 208 2051
Technology € million 103.6 131-137 145 - 148 1476
in % 68% 72%
Service € million 482 54 -58 58-60 575
in % 32% 28%
EBIT € million 9.7 12-14 16 -17 17.4
in % 6.4% B8.5% -7.2% 7.8% - 82% 8.5%
Technology in % 2.8% >3.5% >4.5% 5.5%
Service in % 14.2% >14% >15% 16.3%
Free Cashflow € million -12.6 >5 positive 0.2

Overall, the Board of Management of technotrans AG is
very satisfied with the development of the Group in the
year under review. To summarise, technotrans achieved its
upgraded targets from summer 2017. The revenue growth
of the technotrans Group amounted to € 53.3 million, rep-
resenting an increase of 35.1 percent on 2016. At

€ 205.1 million, the consolidated revenue realised was
squarely inside the most recent forecast range of € 203
to 208 million. After stripping out the acquisitions, the

group achieved organic revenue growth of around

Non-Financial Performance Indicators

Alongside economic goals, all business units of the
technotrans Group also pursue non-financial goals. All ma-
terial aspects for the year under review of 2017 were sum-
marised for the first time in a non-financial group declara-
tion in accordance with the CSR Directive Implementation
Act.
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12 percent and thus exceeded the original forecast for the

2017 financial year.

Operating profit (EBIT) grew in absolute terms by

€ 7.7 million (equivalent to +79.2 percent) to € 17.4 million.
The EBIT margin reached 8.5 percent, compared with

6.4 percent in the previous year. The adjusted forecast
range for 2017 of € 16 to 17 million was therefore sur-

passed.

The declaration in accordance with Section 315b of the
German Commercial Code represents a separate section in
this Combined Management Report (see chapter: Non-Fi-
nancial Group Declaration). It is also posted on the
company's website at https://www.technotrans.com/en/
investor-relations/corporate-governance/corporate-
governance-declaration.html.
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DEVELOPMENT OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

From an economic viewpoint, 2017 exceeded all expecta-
tions. Global trade unexpectedly picked up and global eco-
nomic growth was likewise surprisingly positive. According
to an estimate by the organisation of industrial nations
OECD, the global economy grew by 3.7 percentin 2017 -
the fastest rate since 2011 and 0.3 percentage points bet-
ter than was forecast at the start of the year.

For the first time in a long while, last year's upturn in the

global economy extended to virtually every region of the

world. The emerging economies are gradually shedding

Change of Gross Domestic Product in percent

their economic weakness and China, too, continues to
achieve comparatively strong growth. However the posi-
tive development is above all attributable to industrial na-
tions such as the United States and the eurozone, for
which the economic data was better than forecast at the
start of the year. The German economy grew by

2.5 percent in 2017, its eight successive year of expansion.
The business confidence index for manufacturing industry
reached a new record high. Capacity utilisation of

87.9 percent is well above the long-term average of

83.7 percent.

2017 2016
World &7 32
USA 23 15
Eurozone 24 18
Germany 25 19
China 6.8 6.7
Emerging countries 47 4.4

Source: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook, January 2018

“German mechanical engineering companies regain their
former strength”. The VDMA (German Engineering Federa-
tion) had to revise its expectations substantially upwards
in the past year. The federation had forecast real output
growth of one percent for the German mechanical engi-
neering industry for 2017. According to VDMA figures, me-
chanical engineering companies closed their order books
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for 2017 overall up 3.1 percent in real terms compared with
2016. According to VDMA figures, 2017 output growth was
achieved emphatically through boosts to export markets.
Almost all such markets revealed growth. The major
growth contributors were the USA (+12 percent) and China
(+24 percent).
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The key events for the technotrans Group in the 2017 fi-

nancial year included:

s  Asuccessful start to the new financial year of 2017
and consistently strong revenue and profit growth in
all markets.

> Asuccessful development in the first year after the
acquisition of gwk. The newest group company con-
firms the successful growth pathway in the plastics
processing industry.

s Highly promising projects in electric mobility: from
mobile battery cooling for buses, rail vehicles and
automated guided vehicles (AGVs) to the static
quick-charging station for cars.

s> Theacquisition of a plot of land at the Termotek
GmbH location in Baden-Baden in connection with
the establishment of technotrans Grundstucksver-
waltungs GmbH. technotrans AG holds 100 percent
of the shares.

>  The presentation of a large number of new products
at numerous technology shows

s The upgrading of the annual targets for 2017 and the
presentation of new medium-term targets
(2018-2020] for the technotrans Group.

s> Theimpressive continuation in the upward trend of
the technotrans share price in
2017. On December 29, 2017 it closed at € 44.30, up
more than 93 percent on the start of the financial
year (€ 22.90). Market capitalisation and the aver-
age trading volume of the shares therefore showed

a positive upward movement as expected.
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The 2017 financial year progressed highly successfully for
technotrans. With revenue jumping to € 205.1 million and
EBIT climbing to € 17.4 million, the group achieved the best
resultin the history of the company.

At the time the plans for 2017 were drawn up, the Board of
Management expected revenue of between € 185 and 195
million for the technotrans Group based on a stable devel-
opment in the world economy in conjunction with various
new prajects involving both existing and new customers.
With the publication of the Interim Financial Report, the
Board of Management upped the targets for the year to
consolidated revenue of € 203 to 208 million and EBIT in
the range of € 16.0 to 17.0 million. In realising this revenue
and profit performance, technotrans therefore confirms its

most recent expectations.

Equity improved in absolute terms by € 7.9 million to

€ 69.8 million (previous year: € 61.9 million). The equity ra-
tio climbed to 55.7 percent (previous year: 51.0 percent),
continuing to represent a high proportion of the balance
sheet total, and was therefore above the target level of

50 percent.

In the 2017 financial year, the group achieved its original

target of again generating a positive free cash flow.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE, FINANCIAL POSITION AND NET WORTH

Revenue and Profitability Performance

The financial performance of the technotrans Group
showed a marked improvement at December 371, 2017
compared with the previous year. It was also substantially
influenced by the new additions from the previous year
and the impact these had on the generally positive devel-

opment in business over the whole financial year.

In 2017 the consolidated revenue of technotrans rose in
absolute terms by € 53.3 million to € 205.1 million. Overall,
technotrans therefore reports revenue growth of

35.1 percent at the balance sheet date. Organic growth, i.e.

excluding the revenue contribution of the plastics industry,

came to 12.4 percent. 58 percent of consolidated revenue
now comes from outside the printing industry (previous
year: 45 percent).

Compared with the previous year, business with cus-
tomers in offset, digital and flexographic printing again de-
veloped positively thanks to technotrans’ good market po-
sition in the printing industry. As planned, revenue in that
area grew by more than 2 percent.

Thanks to the market and revenue shares gained, in all rel-
evant markets technotrans moreover again succeeded in
achieving stronger organic growth than those markets

themselves in 2017. The biggest gain in revenue in 2017
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came from our activities in the laser and machine tool in-
dustry, which achieved year-on-year growth of

33 percent, followed by the growth markets with

29 percent growth and plastics industry business, which
likewise expanded at a double-digit rate with 11 percent or-
ganic revenue growth. Revenue from services in the Tech-
nical Documentation area also achieved overall growth of
10 percent.

Because of its customer structure in all submarkets,
technotrans traditionally achieves a high proportion of de-
liveries and revenue in Germany. The 2017 financial year
saw the proportion of revenue achieved by the group with
German customers climb from 52.7 percent in the previous
year to 53.8 percent. The revenue share in the remainder
of Europe was unchanged at 23.4 percent (previous year:
23.5 percent). Meanwhile the revenue share in America fell
to 11.7 percent in the past financial year, compared with
13.8 percent in 2016. The Asia region brought in

10.9 percent (previous year: 9.9 percent), an increase on
2016. The remaining regions achieved a revenue share of
0.2 percent, representing no change from the previous

year's level.
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Revenues by Region in percent, comparison 2017 / 2016

O

technotrans' standard business with industrial customers

is predominantly based on release orders. The equipping of
certain machine models with technotrans products is usu-
ally agreed in advance. Here, the time frame between the
release order and delivery is rarely more than four to six
weeks. Because of these master agreements, information
on incoming orders and order backlogs is not particularly
meaningful. Individual group companies (such as gwk) also

generate revenue from project business.

Gross profit for the group, in other words revenue less cost
of sales, came to € 68.2 million (previous year:

€ 51.2 million). The improvement in gross profit of

33.2 percent compared with the previous year was based
above all on the increased revenue volume and the effects
of changes to the product mix. The increased costs in pro-
portion to revenue meant the gross margin at year-end re-
mained unchanged at a high level of 33.3 percent. The cost
of materials is fully absorbed within the cost of sales. This
item rose by around 35 percent in 2017. The cost of pur-

chased materials ratio (cost of materials as a proportion of
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Germany: 53.8% (52.7%)

Rest of Europe: 23.4% (23.5%)
America: 11.7% (13.8%)

Asia: 10.9% (9.9%)

Rest: 0.2% (0.1%)

consolidated revenue) was therefore almost unchanged

from the previous year at 38.7 percent.

The operating profit (EBIT) reached € 17.4 million, easily
exceeding the prior-year level by 79.2 percent. The EBIT
margin of 8.5 percent overall (previous year: 6.4 percent)

was slightly ahead of the most recent expectations.

The profit performance for the 2017 financial year is es-
sentially based on the increases in profit already realised
over the course of the year thanks to higher revenue, and
on improved economies of scale. In addition, the releasing
of a provision for litigation costs from previous years to
profit or loss in the amount of € 1.0 million had a positive
impact on EBIT for the 2017 financial year. Taking into ac-
count this non-recurring effect, the adjusted EBIT margin
came to 8.0 percent. technotrans thus achieved its goal of
an EBIT margin of between 7.8 and 8.2 percent (or EBIT of
between € 16 and 17 million) for the 2017 financial year on

this adjusted basis, too.
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2017 2016 Change

€ million % € million % in %

Gross profit 68.2 888 512 337 332
EBITDA 22.7 1.0 14.0 93 613
EBIT 17.4 85 97 6.4 79.2
EBT 17.0 83 9.2 6.0 85.3
Annual net profit 123 6.0 7.3 4.8 69.0

The rise in distribution and administrative expenses in the
financial year was much lower than revenue growth. Distri-
bution costs climbed 25.2 percent to € 26.5 million (previ-
ous year: € 21.1 million) and general administrative ex-
penses went up merely € 2.4 million to € 18.6 million (pre-
vious year: € 16.2 million).

Development costs of € 7.5 million for the 2017 financial
year were again higher than in the previous year

(€ 5.5 million). technotrans is investing in a large number of
development projects focusing on the new markets. There
are diverse development activities in the new group com-

panies, too.

In the year under review, the positive balance of other op-
erating income and expenses rose by € 0.4 million to

€ 1.8 million. Year on year, the increase is attributable in
particular to a full year of consolidation of gwk. In addition,
the other operating income includes the releasing of a pro-
vision for litigation costs to profit and loss, as already men-
tioned. However there was an opposite effect in 2017 from
net exchange rate losses amounting to € 1.0 million due to
the high exchange rate fluctuations. This contrasted with
the previous year, when there had been barely any ex-
change rate effect to speak of. No hedging instruments
were used to reduce the impact of exchange rate fluctua-
tions on the operating result.

As a result of the consolidation-related growth in the core
workforce and further capacity-related recruitment, there
was a clear rise in the average number of employees com-

pared with the previous year (+30.6 percent).

Taking into account the effect of moderate wage and

salary increases (averaging +3 percent), personnel ex-
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penses in the year under review went up in absolute terms
from € 52.9 million in the previous year to € 70.6 million.
By contrast, the personnel expenses ratio (personnel ex-
penses as a proportion of consolidated revenue) for the
technotrans Group saw a slight overall reduction to

34.4 percent (previous year: 34.9 percent).

After deduction of the expense items, this leaves an oper-
ating result before depreciation and amartisation (EBITDA)
of € 22.7 million. EBITDA rose year on year by € 8.6 million
(61.3 percent), pushing up the EBITDA margin to

11.0 percent (previous year: 9.3 percent).

Depreciation and amortisation rose by € 0.9 million to a to-
tal of € 5.2 million (previous year: € 4.3 million). Of this,

€ 4.1 million is attributable to the Technology segment
(previous year: € 3.7 million) and € 1.1 million to the Ser-
vices segment (previous year: € 0.6 million). It essentially
results from the group’s general investment activity,
mainly comprising replacement investment. Depreciation
of assets in connection with purchase price allocation ac-
counts for € 1.6 million (previous year: € 1.6 million). As in
the previous year, no write-downs were performed in the

year under review.

The financial result was improved slightly in 2017 com-
pared with the previous year. The balance of income and
expenses came to € -0.5 million (previous year: € -0.6 mil-
lion). The financial result in the year under review is in
essence the result of interest expenses for the group’s
debt financing, which had increased as a result of acquisi-

tion-led new borrowing in the previous year.
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Because of the substantially improved profit before tax,
the tax expense for the past financial year rose to

€ 4.7 million (previous year: € 1.9 million). This represents
an effective tax rate of 27.7 percent (previous year:

20.7 percent). Disregarding the non-cash, tax-related non-
recurring effects from the US tax reform approved in De-
cember 20717, the effective tax rate for the group would

have been 24.3 percent. For the fiscal particularities,

Revenue by segments in € million
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The Technology segment achieved revenue growth of
42 4 percent to € 147.6 million in 2017 (previous year:

€ 103.6 million). Organically, in other words after elimina-
tion of the purchase of gwk, growth in the year under re-
view reached 15.0 percent and therefore again outstripped

the growth rates of recent years.

This segment’s share of consolidated revenue climbed to
72 percent (previous year: 68 percent), with a continuing
upward trend. As in the previous year, the growth of

€ 44.0 million was realised in all relevant submarkets of

the group. The newest group company gwk contributed
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please refer to the additional explanations in Section 26 of

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The consolidated result after tax (net profit) for the 2017 fi-
nancial year rose by 69.0 percent and reached

€ 12.3 million (previous year: € 7.3 million), equivalent to a
return on sales of 6.0 percent (previous year: 4.8 percent).
Earnings per share outstanding therefore likewise im-

proved by around 61 percent from € 1.09 to € 1.76.

1476
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814
575
482
414
2015 2016 2017
Services

€ 30.5 million in total to this rise in revenue. The segment
again benefited from the organic growth in business in the
non-print area. Especially in the laser and machine tool in-
dustry, but also in the so-called growth markets,
technotrans generated substantial revenue growth aver-

aging 33 percent.

Because of the customer structure, the revenue of the
Technology segment is traditionally very strongly focused
on Germany. The proportion of revenue generated with
German customers of 56.6 percent was virtually at the

previous year's level (previous year: 57.2 percent). Mean-
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while the revenue share for the rest of Europe showed an-
other year-on-year rise from 20.7 to 22.0 percent. 2017
saw the segment’s revenue share in the Asia region rise
from 10.4 percent in the previous year to 11.9 percent. At
9.3 percent, America’s revenue share in the Technology
segment was below the prior-year figure (11.6 percent).
Other regions brought in 0.1 percent.

As expected, the Technology segment put in a positive
performance over the year and therefore made a big con-
tribution to the earnings performance of the group (EBIT).
The result for the segment in 2017 improved out of propor-
tion to revenue growth. As well as a better revenue mix,
particularly pro rata cost synergies thanks to the in-

creased volume significantly impacted the segment’s

EBIT by segment (in € million)

10

75

64 6.4

25

04

2013 2014

| Technology

The Services segment achieved year-on-year growth of
19.4 percent in the period under review and generated rev-
enue of € 57.5 million (previous year: € 48.2 million). Over-
all, the Services segment accounted for around 28 percent
of consolidated revenue in 2017 (previous year:

32 percent).
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earnings situation in 2017. Overall, earnings before interest
and taxes (EBIT) for the Technology segment rose year on
year from € 2.9 million to € 8.1 million. The rate of return
for the segment at the end of the financial year was

5.5 percent (previous year: 2.8 percent) and therefore eas-
ily exceeded the expectations at the start of year.

956 employees belonged to the Technology segment at
the end of the year (previous year: 888). As in previous
years, the general administrative areas have been spread
between the segments pro rata, based on their revenue
shares. The increase of 70 employees (+7.9 percent)
stems almost exclusively from growth-related capacity ex-

pansion at the production locations of the technotrans

Group.
93
81
6.8 6.8
29
21
2015 2016 2017
Services

Within the segment, the increase was driven both by grow-
ing follow-on business in the technology markets and by a
year-on-year improvement in the business performance in
the Technical Documentation area.

Disregarding the acquisitions, organic revenue growth in

the 2017 financial year reached around 7.0 percent, com-
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pared with 3.5 percent in the previous year, and was there-

fore above the rate forecast at the start of the year.

In the Services segment, the regional breakdown in rev-
enue for the 2017 financial year was as follows: Germany
48.6 percent (previous year: 43.0 percent), Rest of Europe
27.1 percent (previous year: 29.4 percent), Asia

8.0 percent (previous year: 8.8 percent) and America

17.8 percent (previous year: 18.4 percent). The other re-

gions broughtin 0.5 percent.

Earnings before interest and income taxes for the Services

segment rose by 35.5 percent, from € 6.8 million in the

Net Worth

The net worth of the technotrans Group at December 31,
2017 remained very sound, with an equity ratio of

55.7 percent. Organic corporate growth necessitated in-
creased investments in property, plant and equipment in the

2017 financial year, driving up non-current assets in particu-

Net worth and capital structure in € million

previous year to € 9.3 million. With a rate of return for the
segment of 16.2 percent (EBIT margin), the previous year's
healthy level (14.2 percent) was therefore bettered. The
operating result for the segment is in line with the group
management’s expectations and underlined once again

just how profitable this area is.

373 employees belonged to the Services segment at the
end of the year (previous year: 366). As in previous years,
the general administrative areas have been spread be-
tween the segments pro rata, based on their revenue

shares.

lar. Working capital (inventories and trade receivables) was

also up on the previous year.

At December 31, 2017 the balance sheet total showed an
increase of 3.2 percent to € 125.3 million (previous year:
£ 121.5 million).

Assets 2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 14.8 239
Receivables 24.2 17.8
Inventories 26.6 256
Other short-term assets 18 21
Long-term assets 57.8 521

125.3 121.5
Equity and liabilities 2017 2016
Short-term debts 322 318
Long-term debts 2813 27.8
Equity 69.8 61.9

125.3 121.5
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Assets

The rise in non-current assets from € 52.1 million to

€ 57.8 million results from increased investments in prop-
erty, plant and equipment, following the addition of two
properties. First, land for the planned new construction of
the Termotek GmbH production plant at the Baden-Baden
location was acquired in summer 2017. Second,

€ 7.2 million is for the acquisition of the property at gwk's
production location in Meinerzhagen. This capital invest-

Investment and depreciation in € million

Combined management report
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ment is directly connected to the interest acquired in the
previous year. The carrying amount for intangible assets
fell slightly from € 8.6 million to € 6.9 million. The impair-
ment test carried out revealed no need for amortisation to
goodwill, which is recognised at an unchanged

€ 231 million. Of the investment spending of € 11.5 million,
€ 9.7 million is attributable to the Technology segment and
€ 1.8 million to the Services segment.

Investment Depreciation &

amortisation
2013* 89 32
2014 14 30
2015 17 32
2016* 12.9 43
2017+ 1.5 52

* of which addition from company acquisition (2013: € 6.5 million, 2016: € 11.3 million, 2017: € 7.2 million)

Working capital (inventaries and trade receivables) climbed
by 17 percent (€ 7.4 million) over the year to € 50.8 million.
Within this, inventories changed only minimally by one mil-
lion euros. The increased assets in particular reflect the

group's expanded business base as well as reporting-date-

related effects. Other current assets showed little year-
Equity and liabilities

Within equity and liabilities, there was an absolute increase
in equity at December 31, 2017 of 12.7 percent to

€ 69.8 million (previous year: € 61.9 million). The allocation
of € 12.2 million from the net profit for 2017 (previous
year: € 7.2 million) substantially increased equity. With an
equity ratio of 55.7 percent, group equity continued to
make up a high proportion of the balance sheet total, and

was therefore also above the target level of 50 percent.

The return on equity, representing net income as a propor-
tion of equity, reached 17.5 percent (previous year:

11.6 percent). Minority interests in equity amounted to

€ 0.2 million (previous year: € 0.1 million).
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on-year change at € 1.9 million (previous year:

€ 2.1million). As expected, cash and cash equivalents at
the 2017 balance sheet date declined to € 14.8 million in
particular following the payment for the property purchase

in Meinerzhagen (previous year: € 23.9 million).

At the end of the 2017 financial year, the overall non-cur-
rent liabilities of € 23.3 million were € 4.5 million down on
the previous year (€ 27.8 million). Non-current financial lia-
bilities in particular declined in the year under review, from
€ 23.0 million to € 19.2 million. At the balance sheet date,
technotrans had financial liabilities totalling € 23.0 million
(previous year: € 28.1 million). These stem principally from
investments in fixed assets, as well as from acquisitions of
interests, and are protected in part by land charges. Details
of the structure of financial liabilities are provided in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, under the

Notes to the Balance Sheet 11) "Financial Liabilities".

Current liabilities remained virtually unchanged from the
previous year (€ 31.8 million) at € 32.2 million.
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Within liabilities, provisions totalled € 11.0 million at the end
of 2017, up € 1.2 million on the previous year. The long-
term provisions of around € 1.2 million (previous year:

€ 1.2 million) comprise both personnel-related obligations
(pensions) and those Board of Management remuneration
components that focus on sustainable corporate perfor-
mance. The short-term provisions amounting to

€ 9.8 million (previous year: € 8.6 million) consist of other
obligations towards personnel (€ 6.2 million), payments to
be made under warranty (€ 1.9 million) and other provi-
sions (€ 1.7 million). A provision for litigation settlements
amounting to € 1.0 million could be reversed in the year

under review.

Financial Position

The financial position of the technotrans Group can be con-
sidered very solid. The group increased its cash flow from op-
erating activities by a substantial € 8.0 million to

€ 22.2 million in the 2017 financial year. Free cash flow also
improved significantly but was only mildly positive in view of
the increased cash outflow for investing activities. Over and
above that, the group still enjoyed adequate liquidity reserves

from cash and open lines of credit.

Cashflow in € million

technotrans calculates net working capital as current as-
sets less current liabilities. At December 31, 2017 net
working capital was € 35.3 million, a decrease of

6.2 percent on the previous year (€ 37.6 million).

Corporate growth could be financed entirely from cash
flow from operating activities in 2017. The group’s net debt,
calculated as the difference at the reporting date between
non-current plus current interest-bearing borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents, amounted to € 9.3 million at
the end of the year under review (previous year:

€ 5.3 million). The ratio of net debt to equity (gearing) is
13.3 percent (previous year: 8.5 percent). The ratio of net
debt to EBITDA remains unchanged at 0.4. The gearing ra-

tio is therefore still at a very comfortable rating level.

The 2017 financial year saw the technotrans Group im-
prove the cash flow from operating activities before work-
ing capital changes (cash inflow) by a substantial

56.7 percent to € 22.2 million (previous year:

€ 14.2 million). The cash flow was influenced positively es-
pecially by the operating result before income taxes, de-

preciation and amortisation (EBITDA).

2017 2016
Cash flow from operating activities 222 4.2
Net cash flow from operating activities 14 9.7
Cash flow from investing activities -1.2 -224
Free cash flow 0.2 -126
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 14.8 239

Financial resources tied up or released by changes in
working capital are expressed in the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year under review in particular in
the items change in trade receivables and change in liabili-
ties. On balance, these produced a cash outflow of

€ 8.0 million, which was much higher than in the prior-year

S0

period (€ 2.0 million). The cash outflow for interest and
taxes paid was € 2.9 million (previous year: € 2.5 million).
The cash flow from operating activities (net cash from op-
erating activities) of € 11.4 million nevertheless remained
above the prior-year level (previous year: € 9.7 million) in
2017.
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Cash payments for investments in fixed assets amounted
to € 11.5 million in the 2017 financial year (previous year:
€ 22.4 million). Of this amount, spending on the two prop-
erties came to around € 8.4 million. The net cash em-
ployed for the investments mainly comprised maintenance
investments of € 3.1 million (previous year: € 1.5 million).
All'in all, investment spending by the technotrans Group
was above the target of € 10.0 million originally forecast
for the 2017 financial year. In the previous year, the cash
flow from investing activities also contained the cash out-
flows for the corporate acquisitions amounting to

€ 20.9 million.

As a result of the increased investing activity, free cash
flow remained just positive at € 0.2 million. However this
was well up on the prior-year figure (previous year: € -12.6
million). The group conseguently achieved its original target
of once again generating a positive free cash flow in the

2017 financial year.
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The net cash used for financing activities again showed a
cash outflow of € -8.9 million for the 2017 financial year
(previous year: € 16.6 million cash inflow). The group had
outgoings of € 5.1 million for the scheduled repayment of
borrowings (loan redemptions) (previous year:

€ 6.0 million). € 3.8 million was paid out in the dividend dis-
tribution to technotrans shareholders (previous year:

€ 3.1 million).

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
amounted to € 14.8 million (previous year: € 23.9 million).
The group in addition had available but unused borrowing
facilities amounting to € 17.0 million at December 31, 2017.
From a capital management perspective the group’s liquid-
ity remains comfortable.technotrans therefore remains in a
position to meet its payment obligations from business op-

erations at any time in 2018.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OF TECHNOTRANS AG
(CONDENSED VERSION ACC. GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE)

The annual financial statements of technotrans AG are
prepared according to the German Commercial Code (HGB)
and published in the Federal Official Gazette, unlike the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which follow the Inter-

Business and economic environment

technotrans AG is the parent company of the

technotrans Group. It is a technology company with core
activities in the fields of cooling/temperature control, filter-
ing/separating, and spraying/pumping of liquids.
technotrans AG is moreover strongly influenced by its di-

rectly and indirectly held subsidiaries and participating in-

Financial Performance

national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS as adopted in
the EU). The development of technotrans AG as outlined

below is based on its annual financial statements.

terests. It directly and indirectly holds 19 operating compa-
nies and also encompasses the central functions of the
group. The economic environment for technotrans AG is
essentially the same as that for the technotrans Group.
The management approach for the group parent follows

the same principles as for the group.

€'000 2017 2016
Revenue 80,075 71,057
Inventory change =171 393
Other operating income 878 2117
Cost of material 36,192 32,686
Personal expenses 27,002 25,054
Depreciation and amortisation 1337 1,391
Other operating expenses 11,123 10,704
Net finance costs SVSY 4,943
Taxes 2,683 2,089
Annual net profit 12,202 6,586
Profit carried forward 2,491 2,704
Transfer to retained earnings 5,000 3,000
Net profit 9,693 6,290
52 Annual Report 2017



2017 was another very successful financial year for
technotrans AG. The company achieved substantial rev-
enue growth for the fourth time since 2013, coupled with a
good profit performance. External revenue with existing
and new customers rose more steeply than originally ex-
pected by € 6.8 million, equivalent to a gain of

11.2 percent. Successful business expansion with manu-
facturers from the offset, digital and flexographic printing
industry as well as higher revenue in all other markets, in
particular the laser and machine tool industry, electric mo-
bility and scanner technology, were pleasing develop-
ments. At around 16 percent, the intragroup share of over-
all revenue was almost at the same level as in 2016.

Combined management report
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The revenue share for the Technology segment rose by
€ 6.3 million to € 54.8 million, up 13.0 percent on the pre-
vious year (€ 48.5 million). In the Services segment, rev-
enue came to € 25.3 million compared with € 22.6 million
in the previous year (+12.0 percent).

Revenue overall rose by 12.7 percent compared with the
previous year, from € 71.1 million to € 80.1 million. Earnings
before the financial result and income taxes (EBIT)
amounted to € 5.1 million (previous year: € 3.6 million). This
represents an EBIT margin of 6.3 percent. For the 2017 fi-
nancial year, the Board of Management had defined rev-
enue and earnings targets for technotrans AG envisaging
slight revenue growth in the order of three to five percent

and an EBIT margin of 6.5 percent.

Reconciliation of net income to earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)

€'000 2017 2016
Net profit for the period (Income Statement) 12,202 6,586
Income from write-ups of financial assets 3,360 637
Income from investments 2,284 1,609
Income from profit transfer agreement 4,350 2,923
Interest and similar income S0 24
Income from loans held as financial assets 123 200
Interest and similar expenses 450 451
Income tax expense 2,615 1,956
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 5,060 3,600

The cost of purchased materials for technotrans AG of

€ 36.2 million was 10.7 percent up on the prior-year figure
(previous year: € 32.7 million). This meant the cost of pur-
chased materials ratio (in relation to aggregate operating
performance) fell slightly from 45.7 percent to

45.3 percent.

Personnel expenses for the 2017 financial year rose by

€ 1.9 million overall to € 27.0 million (previous year:

€ 251 million). The increase of 7.8 percent is attributable
on the one hand to the buildup of employees and person-
nel capacity in the revenue-dependent areas, and on the
other hand to implementation of the planned pay increase
for 2017 averaging 3.0 percent.
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The personnel expenses ratio fell from 35.1 percent to

33.8 percent.

Other operating income declined by € 1.2 million, from

€ 2.1 million in the previous year to € 0.9 million. Income
unrelated to the accounting period accounted for

€ 0.3 million of this amount (previous year: € 0.9 million).
This mainly comprised income from cash received for im-
paired receivables. Foreign exchange gains came to around
€ 0.1 million (previous year: € 0.4 million).

Other operating expenses of € 11.1 million were slightly
above the level of the previous year (previous year:
€ 10.7 million). Sales commissions amounted to

€ 0.9 million (previous year: € 0.9 million). These flowed al-
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most in entirety to own subsidiaries. Travel expenses re-
mained broadly unchanged from 2016 at € 0.8 million. A
total of € 0.3 million (previous year: € 0.5 million) was
spent on the use of temporary personnel in the financial
year. Expenditure on warranties (including the allocation to
the provision for guarantees) came to € 0.8 million (previ-
ous year: € 0.4 million). Other operating expenses include
exchange rate losses in the amount of € 0.6 million (previ-
ous year: € 0.2 million).

Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equip-
ment as well as on intangible assets totalled € 1.3 million

for the financial year (previous year: € 1.4 million).

technotrans AG posted an overall financial result of

€ 9.7 million (previous year: € 4.9 million). This includes on
the one hand income from investments amounting to

€ 6.6 million (previous year: € 4.5 million), which comprises
€ 2.3 million in distributions by subsidiaries as well as

€ 4.3 million in profit transfers from Termotek GmbH and

54

gds GmbH on the basis of the existing profit and loss
transfer agreements (PLTAs).

On the other hand write-ups within investment assets
yielded income of € 3.4 million (previous year:

€ 0.6 million). Thanks to the continuing positive business
perfarmance of technotrans america inc., Mt Prospect, llli-
nois, USA, a reversal amounting to € 3.0 million was ap-
plied. The carrying amount of the participating interest was
correspondingly increased. There were no write-downs on
financial assets in the year under review, as in the previous
year. The interest result of € -0.4 million remained steady

compared with the prior-year level (€ -0.4 million).

Current income tax for the 2017 financial year totalled

€ 2.6 million (previous year: € 2.0 million).

Net income for the year of € 12.2 million is reported for the

2017 financial year (previous year: € 6.6 million).
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ASSETS
€'000 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Fixed assets 54,265 51,586
Inventories 10,584 10,470
Receivables and other assets 27,986 17,382
Cash and cash equivalents 5,786 13,302
Current assets 44,356 41,154
Deferred items 451 387
Deferred tax assets 6 9
Total assets 99,078 93,137
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
€'000 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Issued capital 6,908 6,908
Capital reserve 18,096 19,096
Retained earnings 30,707 25,706
Accumulated profit 91588 6,290
Equity 66,404 58,000
Provisions 8,316 5,809
Liabilities 24,358 29,327
Deferred items 0 1
Total equity and liabilities 99,078 93,137

The balance sheet total of technotrans AG grew by
€ 6.0 million (+6.4 percent) compared with December 31,
2016, from € 93.1 million to € 99.1 million.

Fixed assets at the balance sheet date rose from

€ 571.6 million to € 54.3 million. Property, plant and equip-
ment and intangible assets showed a further year-on-year
decrease of € 0.6 million to € 9.9 million. Within invest-
ment assets, write-ups prompted an overall rise in shares

in affiliated companies of € 3.2 million to € 44.3 million

(previous year € 41.1 million).

Inventories of € 10.6 million (previous year: € 10.5 million)

were unchanged from the previous year's level.
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On the other hand receivables and other assets rose

steeply by € 10.6 million compared with the position at De-
cember 37, 20716 to € 28.0 million. Of this amount, receiv-

ables from affiliated companies account for € 19.3 million

(previous year: € 10.8 million). technotrans AG extended a

loan amounting to € 7.7 million to the subsidiary GWK

Gesellschaft Warme Kaltetechnik mbH, used in the main

for financing the property purchase in Meinerzhagen.

Cash consequently fell from € 13.3 million to € 5.8 million

at the balance sheet date.

Equity increased to € 66.4 million, up from € 58.0 million

at the end of the previous year. The rise is mainly attribut-

able to the net income for 2017, of which € 5.0 million was

allocated to the retained earnings in agreement with Sec-
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tion 58 (2) of the German Stock Corporation Act. The eg-
uity ratio improved again from 62.3 percent to
67.0 percent.

Liabilities and provisions at the balance sheet date
amounted to € 32.7 million (previous year: € 35.1 million).
The change results mainly from the € 4.0 million reduction
in financial liabilities. Provisions were increased by

€ 2.5 million compared with the pasition at December 31,
2016 to € 8.3 million.

The cash flow from operating activities (net cash) for the
2017 financial year reached € 3.4 million (previous year:

€ 0.8 million). The change in working capital resulted in a
budgetary commitment totalling € 3.9 million. Around

€ 4.3 million of this was attributable to a reporting-date-
related rise in receivables e.g. from affiliated companies, as
well as other assets.

Employees

At December 31, 2017 technotrans AG had a total of 469
employees; this was 20 more than at the end of
2016. For 2017, 371 employees belonged to the Technol-

Opportunities and risks

The business performance of technotrans AG is essen-
tially subject to the same opportunities and risks as that of
the technotrans Group. Merely in the two risk categories
"General and Industry-Specific Risks" and “Corporate
Strategy Risks” does technotrans AG exhibit certain higher
risks than for the group in view of its lower target earnings.

Outlook
In view of technotrans AG's ties with the group companies

as well as its importance within the group, the Board of
Management refers to its comments in the Report on Ex-
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As a result of moderate investing activities in fixed assets,
there were cash payments in the peri